

Ormiston Academies Trust

(Ormiston Sir Stanley Matthews Academy) Provider access policy statement (PAL)

Access for colleges, training providers, universal technical colleges, universities, and all other post-16 providers, including technical, vocational, and academic routes and apprenticeships.

Policy version control

Policy type	Statutory, OAT mandatory template
Author	Rachel McCarthy, National Lead Practitioner for Careers
In consultation with (in 2024)	Dr. Jennifer Barker, National Director of Learning Natasha Rancins, National Director of Secondary Education P. Hartley, Career Leader Development Consultant, CEC (Careers & Enterprise Company) J. Sykes, Director of CEIAG, Co-op Academies V. Flanagan, Enhanced Career Leader, Ormiston NEW Academy F. Compton, Enhanced Career Leader, Ormiston Rivers Academy
Approved by	OAT Executive, February 2026 Education Committee, March 2026
Approved by Trust Board	March 2026

Release date	April 2026
Review	April 2027
Description of changes	Amendments required based on the new DfE statutory careers guidance, May 2025.

Contents

1. Introduction	4
2. Pupil entitlement.....	4
2.1. Meaningful provider encounters	4
2.2. Pupil entitlement.....	5
2.3. Minimum two provider encounters per phase.....	5
3. Management of provider access requests	7
3.1. Procedure	7
3.2. Opportunities for a provider visit	7
3.3. Previous pupil destinations	9
4 Premises and facilities	10
Appendix 1	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Exemplar for academy internal guidance only	Error! Bookmark not defined.
Appendix 2.....	11

1. Introduction

- 1.1. Ormiston Sir Stanley Matthews Academy is committed to supporting our students to make informed decisions about their future pathways. We act impartially, in line with our statutory duties, to ensure that we promote a full range of academic routes, technical routes, and apprenticeships. We believe that it is vital to ensure that all pupils are aware of the benefits of apprenticeships, T levels and other approved technical qualifications and can consider them, alongside academic options, when making decisions about their next steps, aiming to reduce drop out from courses and avoid the risk of students becoming NEET (Young people not in education, employment, or training).

2. The quality and impact of careers provision at Introduction

- 2.1. Ormiston Sir Stanley Matthews Academy monitored by the Career Leader, our Senior Leadership Team, the National Lead Practitioner Enrichment Careers and OAT, based on current good practice guidelines by the Department for Education, Gatsby Benchmarks and Careers and Enterprise Company (CEC). Access and opportunity to engage with technical, vocational, and training providers will form part of this process.
- 2.2. Links with other policies. This policy supports and is underpinned by key school policies, including those for Careers, Child protection, Equality and diversity, and SEND.
- 2.3. Equality and Diversity. Access to other providers is available and promoted to allow all students to access information about other providers of further education and apprenticeships. Ormiston Sir Stanley Matthews Academy is committed to encouraging all students to make decisions about their future based on impartial guidance.

3. Pupil entitlement

3.1. Meaningful provider encounters

- 3.1.1. One encounter is defined as one meeting/session between pupils and one provider. We are committed to providing meaningful encounters to all pupils using the Making it meaningful checklist.

[Making it Meaningful: Benchmark 7 | CEC Resource Directory \(careersandenterprise.co.uk\)](#)

- 3.1.2. As part of our careers programme, we will consider requests from approved training, apprenticeship, technical and vocational educational providers, including University Technical Colleges where appropriate, to speak to our students. Ormiston Sir Stanley Matthews Academy will also approach these providers directly when planning and organising key career related events throughout the school year, such as school assemblies, webinars within the curriculum, including live events, careers management events and parents' evenings.

Commented [DB1]: Do we also want to say careers and enterprise and Gatsby?

3.2. Pupil entitlement

3.2.1. The Baker Clause is legally enforceable, and our academy is committed to meeting its requirements. All pupils in years 8 to 13 are entitled:

- To find out about technical education qualifications and apprenticeships opportunities, as part of a careers programme which provides information on the full range of education and training options available at each transition point
- To hear from a range of local providers about the opportunities they offer, including technical education and apprenticeships – through options events, assemblies and group discussions and taster events
- To understand how to make applications for the full range of academic and technical courses

3.3. Minimum two provider encounters per phase

3.3.1. All schools must provide a **minimum of two encounters** with providers of technical education or apprenticeships **at each key phase of their education**:

- Phase 1 - the period beginning at the same time as the school year in which the majority of pupils in the pupils' class attain the age of 13 and ending with 28 February in the following school year (Year 8 and between 1 September and 28 February during Year 9)
- Phase 2 - the period beginning at the same time as the school year in which the majority of pupils in the pupils' class attain the age of 15 and ending with 28 February in the following school year (Year 10 and between 1 September and 28 February during Year 11)
- Phase 3 - the period beginning at the same time as the school year in which the majority of pupils in the pupils' class attain the age of 17 and ending with 28 February in the following school year (Year 12 and between 1 September and 28 February during Year 13)

This entitlement is in line with the updated Department for Education Provider Access Legislation, from January 2023, and the DfE Statutory Careers Guidance, May 2025,

These six meetings are timed to inform consideration of post-14, post-16 and post-18 options and progression to the next stage of education or training. This gives pupils the opportunity to consider how studying or training in different ways, and in different environments, beyond academic education might suit their skills, interests, and aptitudes.

3.3.2. For pupils of compulsory school age these encounters are **mandatory** for all to attend and there will be a minimum of two encounters for **year 8 to 9** pupils and two encounters for **year 10 to 11** pupils. For pupils in **year 12 to 13**, particularly those that have not yet decided on their next steps, there are two more provider encounters available during this period, which are optional for pupils to attend.

3.3.3. Schools should encourage all pupils to attend the encounters. However, optional attendance for older pupils recognises that, while many 16- to 18-year-olds will benefit from finding out more

Commented [DB2]: I'm not sure this heading makes sense. DO we mean minimum frequency per key stage?

about post-18 technical options, some will already have made a firm decision to pursue their chosen pathway.

- 3.3.4. The Provider Access Legislation includes flexibility for schools to arrange encounters with the same provider across more than one 'key phase.' For example, a school may invite an FE college to talk to pupils in the first key phase (year 8 to 9) about key stage 4 options and to talk to pupils in the second key phase (year 10 to 11) about post-16 options. However, within the same key phase, schools must always provide meaningful encounters with two different providers to meet the legal requirement. Schools should also ensure appropriateness of the encounters for learners with SEND.

Commented [DB3]: The provider access legislation?
Good to make this clear.

- 3.3.5. In schools, the governing body must make sure that learners in years 8 to 13 receive at least six encounters with a provider of technical education or apprenticeships.

Commented [DB4]: This feels like it should be in sectionn 2?

3.4. Content of the provider encounters

- 3.4.1. Ormiston Sir Stanley Matthews Academy will ensure that each registered pupil meets with a representative range of education and training providers and that the providers will provide the following set of prescribed information, as a minimum:

Commented [DB5]: Insert name of academy? Otehrwise not clear who 'we' is

- Information about the provider and the approved technical education qualifications or apprenticeships that the provider offers;
- Information about the careers to which those technical education qualifications or apprenticeships might lead;
- A description of what the learning or training with the provider is like; (including the opportunity to meet staff and students from the provider) and
- Responses to questions from the pupils (including our most vulnerable and those with additional learning needs) about the provider or technical education qualifications and apprenticeships.

- 3.4.2. Where practical, our registered students will have access to a university technical college

- 3.4.3. Ormiston Sir Stanley Matthews Academy will ensure that the six encounters happen for a reasonable period of time during the standard school day. Provider encounters that take place outside of school hours, for example parent's evenings, do not count towards fulfillment of the legal requirement for six provider encounters, but schools are still encouraged to provide these complimentary experiences for parents and their parents/carers.

- 3.4.4. Parental/carers involvement is encouraged, and parents/carers may be invited to attend events to meet with providers.

4. Management of provider access requests

4.1. Procedure

3.1.1 This part of the policy statement sets out the school's arrangements for managing the access of providers to pupils at the school for the purposes of giving them information about the provider's education or training offer. This complies with the school's legal obligations under Section 42B of the Education Act 1997, the legal duty known as the 'Baker Clause', 2018 and the Skills and Post-16 Education Act 2022.

3.1.2 A provider wishing to request delivering a provider access session to pupils should contact Mrs A. Hackney, Career lead. All requests made by providers should be emailed at least 6 weeks in advance of the expected date of the session.

Telephone: 01782 882200 Email: Ahackney@ossma.co.uk

3.1.3 The academy will then work with providers to identify the most effective opportunity for them to share information about education and training opportunities. The Careers Leader will prepare for each provider visit by notifying students and their parents/carers to consult the provider website for background information, including details of the courses and qualifications that the provider offers and their Ofsted grade.

4.2. Opportunities for a provider visit

4.2.1 Providers will be invited to contribute to academy events integrated into the school careers programme, these will offer providers an opportunity to come into school to speak to pupils and/or their parents/carers. The academy will make provider visits available to all students in the relevant year group.

4.2.2 The Careers Leader will ensure that the provider visit will be for a 'reasonable period of time during the standard school day.' The Academy Day runs from 8:20am- 3:25pm

4.2.3 The academy offers a comprehensive careers education programme. The academy is committed to working with other providers to ensure our pupils can make informed decisions about future choices. Where possible, we like to align visits with our programmed calendar of Career Education, Information and Guidance (CEIAG) (see below). As a provider, please speak to our named Careers Leader to identify the most suitable opportunity for you.

4.2.4 Once a provider visit request has been submitted, the Academy Careers Leader will respond within 10 working days. All requests will be given due consideration by the designated Careers Leader and Senior Leadership Team.

4.2.5 Once the request has been granted, we will ask you for a range of information to share with our pupils and parents/carers before the session. This may include a prospectus, letter, or presentation.

Commented [DB6]: See comments for more info but I think we want to make it clearer which sections of the policy are for who - currently it's an amalgam of a policy and instructions to providers. I think it would be good to split this out more clearly.

Commented [RM7R6]: Jem, would it be better to move this paragraph to the start of section 3?

Commented [DB8R6]: Yes I think so -then there are broadly two sections, a sort of overarching policy and then the specific things schools should do to manage rprovider access.

Commented [DB9]: Access to what?

Commented [DB10]: This is quite vague - can we rephrase to say something like 'providers will be invited to contribute to academy events'

Commented [DB11]: Who is this written to? Is it teachers? If so, can it state that?

4.2.6. This should include:

- Details of the opportunities you offer, including technical education, courses, and entry requirements.
- What is the learning like in your institution?
- How do you prepare students for their best next step on successful completion of your course/training?
- Provide examples of linking courses with careers relating to the labour market and recent positive destinations of pupils who have completed their learning with you.

4.2.7. Requests will be considered against:

- Clashes with other planned activities or visits
- Interruption to preparation for public or internal examinations
- Availability of school staff, space, and resources to host the session
- All requests will also be considered in line with the academy's Safeguarding policy. For questions on this policy statement or the wider careers programme at Ormiston Sir Stanley Matthews Academy please do not hesitate to contact us.
- Ormiston Sir Stanley Matthews Academy will keep a log of all provider requests for access and the outcomes and record on Compass+ to support delivery and evaluation of the careers programme.

	Autumn Term	Spring Term	Summer Term
Year 8	Career related learning within subjects Careers Fayre	STEM assemblies Career assemblies	Big Bang Fare ESB week: careers focus
Year 9	Career related learning within subjects Careers Fayre	Career assemblies Options evening	ESB week: careers focus
Year 10	Career related learning within subjects Careers Fayre	College Providers Career Meetings with career advisor	Work Experience (2xweeks)
Year 11	School leavers Fare College Applications	Interviews with career advisor College applications	

4.2.8. The academy policies on safeguarding and visitors sets out the school's approach to allowing providers into school as visitors to talk to our students. These can be found on the school website.

4.2.9. In previous terms/years we have invited the following providers from the local area to speak to our pupils:

- Goodwins
- Army
- NHS

4.3. Previous pupil destinations

4.3.1. Last year our Year 11 pupils moved to a range of providers in the local area after school:

- Stoke on Trent Sixth form college
- Stoke College
- Newcastle college
- Apprenticeships

4.4.3

- School Sixth Form 0.4%
- Sixth Form College 22%
- Further Education 66.1%
- Apprenticeships 4.7%
- Employment without training 0.4%
- Employment with non-accredited training 0.4%
- Part time Employment 0.8%
- EFA funded work based learning 2.5%

5. Premises and facilities

- 5.1. The school will make the main hall, sports hall, atrium and classrooms or private meeting rooms available for discussions between the provider and students, as appropriate to the activity. The school will also make available projectors and other specialist equipment to support provider presentations. This will all be discussed and agreed in advance of the visit with the Careers Leaders or a member of the academy team.
- 5.2. Meaningful online engagement is also an option, and we are open to providers that are able to provide online engagement with our students. Technology checks in advance will be required to ensure compatibility with systems.
- 5.3. Providers are welcome to leave or send a copy of their prospectus or other relevant course literature to the academy Careers Leader, who will ensure that this is placed in the appropriate careers area of the academy. This area is available to all students to access.
- 5.4. If a provider wishes to raise a complaint with regards to provider access, this should in the first instance be directed to:

Name:	Mrs Amy Hackney	Role: Career Lead
Telephone:	01782 882200	Email: AHackney@ossma.co.uk

Appendix 2

Name of the provider requesting access & details of provision	<i>e.g., Lakeside College, Further Education College, and Apprenticeship provider for 16–18-year-old students</i>
Contact name at Provider and contact details	Name and Job title: Email address: Telephone number
Proposed date, time, and length of session	
Number of staff who propose to visit	All visitors will be subject to our safeguarding policy. A DBS check will not be required. OSSMA All Staff - Child Protection and Safeguarding September 2025.pdf - All Documents Persons acting on behalf of a provider may represent the provider, or accompany the provider, if they are particularly well placed to engage and inform pupils about the options available. For example, a University Technical College or an apprenticeship provider may ask to bring a key employer with them on a provider visit.
Aims and objectives of session including year group	<i>e.g., Year 10 assembly Post 16 Options including entry requirements, courses available, labour market information & sectors relating to courses, positive destinations on completion of courses.</i>
Please demonstrate which Gatsby Benchmarks relate to the session and how (link to information re Gatsby Benchmarks Good Career Guidance Education Gatsby)	<i>e.g.,</i> BM1 After reading Careers Programme support to further enhance this BM4 linking GCSE subjects to career related learning and future progression routes BM7 Provide a meaningful encounter of further education

Proposed format, timings, and duration of the session including facilities and equipment required	<i>e.g., One hour assembly, theatre, or main hall to accommodate year group. PowerPoint presentation including videos. Questions and answers session for students. Literature to be taken away following assembly.</i>
Support required from Ormiston Sir Stanley Matthews Academy including staffing	To enable the academy to provide appropriate supervision.